NATIONAL BENCH REST SHOOTERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
BOARD MEETING MINUTES
SUNDAY, DECEMBER 8, 2024
TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL

A teleconference meeting of the NBRSA Board of Directors was called to order by Interim
President Wayne Campbell at 6:10 pm EST on Sunday, December 8, 2024. In attendance were:

Wayne Campbell, Interim President
Pam Campbell, Secretary
Pat Reagin, Eastern Regional Director

Mike Conry, Gulf Coast Regional Director
Don Creach, Mid-Continent Regional Director
Chris Harris, North Central Regional Director

Dan Zaccanti, Northwest Regional Director

Wayne Moore, Southeast Regional Director

Mike Sosenko, Southwest Regional Director

Mr. Campbell opened the meeting thanking the members for attending the meeting tonight.

Mr. Campbell announced that the minutes of the annual meeting held on October 26, 2024 were
approved by email by Mr. Conry, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Boyet, Mr. Zaccanti, Mr. Ross, Mr. Sosenko,
Mr. Potts, and Mr. Harris. The minutes of the general membership meeting and continued Board
of Directors meeting held on October 30, 2024 were approved by email by Mr. Conry, Mr.
Zaccanti, Mr. Ross, Mr. Sosenko, Mr. Potts, and Mr. Boyet.

He stated his first item for discussion was a request to waive the membership fee for international
competitors attending the 2025 NBRSA Nationals who will be competing in the World
Championship. The request was made by the Bench Rest Rifle Club of St. Louis. He stated that
this was approved by the Board for the 2015 Nationals.

A motion to waive the membership for international competitors competing in the 2025
NBRSA Group Nationals was made by Mr. Pat Reagin, second by Mr. Mike Sosenko. Mr.
Campbell called for a vote. Mr. Conry, Mr. Creach, Mr. Zaccanti, Mr. Moore, Mr. Sosenko, Mr.
Reagin and Mr. Harris all voted in favor of the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

His second item for discussion was from Brian Mason, Fundraising Chairman for the Bench Rest
Rifle Club of St. Louis requesting that we allow sponsors who purchase targets for our NBRSA
ranges starting with the 2025 Group and Score Nationals and Worlds be allowed to put the
sponsors names on the individual 100 yard targets. He referred them to the email he had sent out
concerning this from Mr. Mason. He stated that this was done in a competition in Arizona years
back. He then named several sponsors who had benefited from this. He opened the floor.



Mr. Creach took the floor and stated that according to the rulebook, the only thing that could be
attached to the target was the target/competitor number. He stated that the rulebook would not
allow anything else on the target. Several other directors also remembered it being done at the
Arizona range. Mr. Creach stated then it was not done according to the rulebook. Mr. Creach
stated again it says nothing on the target except the competitor number. Mr. Campbell agreed
that was what the rulebook stated. Mr. Chris Harris asked for the floor and stated that he has
said before that he believes we have to consider the things the ranges and members want us to
allow, that he feels we are holding benchrest back. He continued saying that they see an
opportunity to bring sponsors onboard to help with expenses and he can’t see why we want to
turn that down. Mr. Harris says we won’t mess up the target.

Mr. Reagin took the floor and says he does not see where the rulebook prohibits it. He continued
saying it’s not like they are handwriting it on it. This would be an additional sticker off to the
side of the competitor number. Mr. Creach took the floor back and stated this is a violation of the
rules, it says competitor number, that’s it. Mr. Harris stated he believed that they needed to vote.
Mr. Campbell took the floor back and stated it can be interpreted differently. He agreed with Mr.
Creach, but it does not say the competitor number is the only thing on the target. He continued
saying that since it’s a rulebook issue, it would be a trial for 2025 and then put to the
membership. Mr. Creach took the floor back and told the board he recently had an issue with a
member that was going blind and that he was having trouble seeing the target and asked if they
could put a red dot on the target for him. He had told the competitor they could not. He
continued saying that any violation with one of our rules is a violation of all of our rules.

Mr. Harris took the floor and stated he understood that because that would be helping the
competitor. He continued saying this situation is not helping any one competitor. Mr. Conry took
the floor and read the rule 3.3.1. from the rulebook. He continued saying it has to have a
competitor number. It does not say anything else. Mr. Reagin took the floor and stated that
anything we can do to help the clubs financially is beneficial. Mr. Moore took the floor and
asked that when it was done before was it distracting in anyway? Mr. Campbell took the floor
and told the board that they printed it in small writing and it was on both the 100 & 200 targets.
Mr. Mason is only asking to put it on the 100 yard targets. Mr. Creach stated other ranges have
had sponsors buy the targets and they announced who bought the targets but not put anything on
the actual targets. Mr. Sosenko took the floor and asked long did we have before they needed an
answer.

Mr. Campbell answered saying I don’t think we have to give them an answer right away. He
asked the board if they would be willing to allow him to get Mr. Mason to send him a sample of
what he wanted to put on the target. He continued saying he was leary of agreeing to something
he had not seen. Mr. Creach stated he would agree to that. He told Mr. Campbell to follow
through on that plan. Mr. Moore took the floor and stated he would definitely like to see the size
and dimensions they intend to use. Mr. Sosenko stated that if we get a sample then we know



what we are dealing with. He continued saying this way everyone will have a chance to read the
rulebook. Mr. Campbell told the board he would get in touch with Mr. Mason.

Mr. Campbell moved to the next item for discussion. He stated he needed to address the Phoenix
debacle that appeared in Phoenix caused by the Arizona Benchrest Shooters. He continued
saying that they have submitted their membership renewal. He continued saying that for the ones
not at the Nationals he wanted to state the facts of the situation. First, he stated that Arizona
Benchrest Shooters signed a match agreement on September 26, 2023 stating they would abide
by all applicable NBRSA rules. Secondly, that on January 15, 2024 Mr. David Woodward,
President called for a telephone meeting concerning the matter of rotations of the Unlimited class
at the Group Nationals. It was denied by the Board. On their very own website, Arizona
Benchrest Shooters advertised that the unlimited class would be run by the NBRSA rules stating
it would be a full rotation even spelling it out that you move to the right after each group.

Mr. Campbell continued saying when we arrived in Phoenix their brochure that was passed out to
the competitors showed that they would use a rotation that was illegal. Several board members
approached Mr. Lou Murdica who was in charge but he would not budge. At the annual Board of
Directors meeting held on Saturday, October 26, 2024 it was brought to the entire board that
Arizona Benchrest Shooters, the host, intended to not follow the NBRSA rules concerning this
class even though they had been told numerous times they could not. The Board voted
unanimously on October 26, 2024 that they must go by the rules or the unlimited class would not
be registered. They gave them until Sunday, October 27th at noon to inform the competitors that
they would abide by the NBRSA rules.

Mr. Campbell continuing telling the board as most of them knew, there were a big number of
people from 2 other countries and many many people who had traveled thousands of miles to
attend this Nationals and to get there and to fall up into this mess was unacceptable.

Mr. Campbell then called on Mr. Harris and asked him to tell the board what Mr. Murdica had
told him when he approached him concerning why he would not follow the rules. Mr. Harris
stated that he went to Mr. Murdica and told him that we could fix this issue. He told Mr.
Murdica that the Board had just had a meeting and stated that it would not be registered if he did
not follow the rules and he said “he didn’t care”. Mr. Harris told him that it was no reason to
have a conflict over this and he suggested that they get it right for the competitors, that the
competitors are the ones losing out. Mr. Mudica asked him, “what do you mean the competitors
are losing out”? Mr. Murdica then replied “I win,” “I win.” Mr. Harris then asked him, “what did
you say?” Did you say, “you win and the competitors lose,” Mr. Harris stated Mr. Murdica
repeated several times “I win, competitors lose”. Mr. Harris stated there were other competitors
that heard him and he then just walked off.

Mr. Harris continued saying what came out was his anger and it was his true emotional feelings
that the NBRSA voted against him. He continued saying that it is not about winning, it is about
doing it right and the fact that someone can be would be so obstructional towards our



organization. It was despicable. Mr. Harris continued saying I am always for change but I’'m not
about people defying and changing the sport without following the rules.

Mr. Campbell then asked Mr. Conry if he would tell the board what he was told when he and Bob
Scarbrough offered to fix the targets. Mr. Conry took the floor and stated that Michelle, one of
the ladies who helps run the matches in Phoenix had called him on Saturday night and asked him
how they could fix the issue. Mr. Conry stated he told her all that needed to be done was to fix
the order of the targets. He had just left the range and had Mr. Scarbrough with him in his truck
on speaker phone. Mr. Scarbrough spoke up and said he would help him the next day, that they
would not practice and that it should not take more than 2 hours, all that had to be done was to
rework the targets by competitor numbers. He continued saying that they showed up on Sunday
mornig at 7 am to start. He went to Michelle and was informed by Mr. Murdica who was also
present telling them that they were not going to change, that the targets would be left as they
were. Mr. Conry stated that in his mind he thought that we have an individual, and this is not the
first time, who just blatantly and intentionally is sabotaging an NBRSA National event.

Mr. Campbell thanked both gentlemen for their comments. He continued saying that both Mr.
Murdica and Mr. Schwartzkopf have gotten on Accurate Shooters website and slammed the
NBRSA board. Mr. Moore took the floor and asked Mr. Campbell what was his take on all of
this? Mr. Campbell stated that the NBRSA has 8 regions. 99 % of problems comes from one
region in the SW, 99% of our problems comes for one range in that region and 99% of all the
problems comes from one individual. He continuing saying he believes “we are not under any
obligations to keeping any member who behaves in this manner”.

Mr. Campbell then called on Ms. Campbell, the Business Manager to explain issues she has
encountered with the Arizona Benchrest Shooters. She stated that in the last 3 years they have
become habitual in paying their match fees. She is required to report this to the board at the
annual board meetings and last year the board made a motion that if they were late again the
2025 Nationals would be pulled and they would not be eligible to host any more World Team
qualifying matches. They again were late in paying their February match fees and she did inform
Mr. Woodard and Mr. Sosenko but no action was taken.

She also noted they were late in paying the Nationals fees from this Nationals by a few days.
They also recently attempted to include a target fee on the Nationals registration form with the
trophy fee. She stated that the rulebook clearly says the trophy fee is $15.00 and that they could
not include this target fee with it. She received a snarky email from them concerning this matter
and referred it to Mr. Woodward. She stated that the rulebook does allow for a target fee but
could not be added into the trophy fee. She reminded them that Mr. Woodward had sent out an
email for their opinion on this matter and the Board stated the target fee had to be listed
separately on the registration form. She had also received an email a few months ago from Mr.
Murdica questioning why “was the Hall of Fame” was on the website and directing her to
remove it. She brought this to the annual board meeting and it was decided we can post anything
on our website we would like. She also told the board that she is required to post the financials



prior to the general membership meeting at the range. When she asked Matt Schartzkopf where
she could post it at the range, he told her she could not post them without a permit and it would
take 2 weeks to get a permit. She told him they had to be posted and he handed her a form to fill
out to get a permit knowing it would be too late. Clearly trying to make it impossible to get these
posted.

She left and headed to the Ben Avery office to see what could be done. As she got to the office,
Matt Schwartzkopf called and told her to come back that he would allow her to post it under his
permit. If not attempting to be difficult, why did he not offer to begin with? He had also told her
he booked the LR range office for the continued board meeting to be held on Wednesday. When
we arrived, it was locked. She attempted to call him. No answer. We held the meeting outside
on the concrete floor. No chairs or tables. This is only a few of the constant issues she has
received recently from these two.

She also informed the board that they have not paid for the October 5-6, 2024 match. Mr. Moore
asked if they had paid their National fees. Ms. Campbell informed the board that they sent in the
match fees on Thursday December 5, 2024. They were due by December 3, 2024. They
overpaid paying for each yardage rather than each day on 2 of the days, resulting in an
overpayment of $609.00. She stated once everything is confirmed and receipted she will refund
the overpayment.

Mr. Harris stated that in talking to several of the competitors that live in Phoenix, they all agree
with the Board’s actions at the Nationals. He continued saying that we are dealing with one
person and he has been always anti-NBRSA to our organization. We are struggling as it is. Why
do we need someone who works so hard to hurt our organization? We can no longer tolerate this
behavior.

Mr. Campbell took the floor back and told the board now we need to talk about Freedom
benchrest. He stated that Mr. Murdica announced several times at the National competition
concerning them joining Freedom Benchrest. Mr. Campbell told the board he had received an
email from Mr. Murdica and he had emailed it to each board member explaining Mr. Murdica’s
intentions to dual register with NBRSA and Freedom Benchrest next year then leave the NBRSA
after that year. He stated he was not sure he intended for him to be included but himself and
several of the directors were included.

Mr. Campbell told the board that Mr. Murdica made the announcer read a very disturbing letter
stating that all the mess was totally the fault of the NBRSA and blaming the NBRSA for
everything up to and including world war three. Mr. Moore took the floor and stated he is
definitely doing more harm than good. Mr. Campbell stated we can continue to talk about all
the issues but he thinks it’s time to deal with it. Mr. Sosenko asked for the floor and informed
the Board that he had a match at his club at Visalia and had 20 people there with 17 registered
members who he explained exactly what happened at the Nationals and he asked for a vote on
whether they wanted to stay with the NBRSA. It was unanimous they all wanted to stay with the



NBRSA. Mr. Gary O’cock was there and stated that Phoenix club is going to stay. Mr. Sosenko
asked if we used the Cactus as a qualifier every year. Mr. Campbell explained that qualifying
matches are only held every other year.

Mr. Sosenko took the floor back and stated that we all knew that Capstone is the sponsor for the
Cactus and owns all the rights to Berger. He continued saying that Phoenix is talking to Capstone
to hold the Cactus and Capstone would be running the match. He stated they would have to use
Matt Schwartzkopf but not Lou Murdica. He stated that he did know that Lester Bruno and Gary
O’cock and several other competitors would not be going to Freedom Benchrest. Mr. Campbell
informed the board that Freedom Benchrest that he had been told they do not have any rules and
no membership fees. Mr. Moore stated so there are several other people who are creating another
club? Mr. Sosenko stated that no, it would be the same people but not Mr. Murdica. Mr.
Sosenko stated he knew you had to be fully insured, and he thinks Matt Schwartzkopf is the
President, and Sherry, and he thinks Lou Murdica are all part of Arizona Benchrest Shooters.

Mr. Moore asked, with this information is Lou Murdica going to be involved in our organization
or is he out? Mr. Creach asked to speak but his telephone call disconnected and he never
returned. Mr. Harris took the floor and stated he would like to propose a motion that we
cancel Lou Murdica’s personal membership and refund his money and he is not allowed to
participate in any NBRSA competitions or have any managing involvement in any NBRSA
events whatsoever. Mr. Moore second the motion. Mr. Harris commented we do not need the
antagonism from any member. Mr. Campbell called for a vote. Mr. Conry, Mr. Harris, Mr.
Reagin, Mr. Moore, Mr. Zaccanti, voted for the motion. Mr. Sosenko abstained. Motion passed.

Mr. Campbell took the floor and stated that his wife is an associate member under his
membership. Since you cannot be an associate member without a member, we will need to
terminate her membership also. Mr. Campbell informed the board he would prepare the letter
and send out to the Board to review before sending it out to Mr. Murdica. He stated it would be
emailed and he would also send it out by certified mail.

Mr. Sosenko stated he would not vote but would continue to help in any way.

Mr. Campbell stated there was one more issue to handle. As he had mentioned earlier, he stated
that Arizona Benchrest Shooters club had submitted an application for renewal of their club
membership and included payment of $40.00 in with the Nationals fees that were due to the
NBRSA. He continued saying they also have a match the following weekend of this meeting.
Mr. Campbell stated that his understanding is that this club is owned by Mr. Murdica, and
apparently he makes all the decisions based on what happened at the Nationals. Mr. Harris says
that we have removed Mr. Murdica from the organization and had stated that he can’t have any
involvement in the matches. Mr. Campbell asked Mrs. Campbell to confirm that she did receive
the money and she told them that she has an application to renew their club membership and the
money was included in the National match fees. Mr. Conry made a motion to not accept the
application and return their money. Mr. Moore seconded the motion. Mr. Sosenko asked



Mrs. Campbell who signed the application? She stated it was scribbled and not really legible but
she was pretty sure it was Matt Schwartzkopf.

Mr. Sosenko continued that he was not clear on which organization Mr. Murdica was involved in,
that there were two in Phoenix, one Arizona Benchrest Shooters and another one Arizona
Benchrest. Mrs. Campbell took the floor and stated that it was submitted by Arizona Benchrest
Shooters. She continued saying that the only club she had any dealings with had been the
Arizona Benchrest Shooters and it involved Matt Schwartzkopf and Lou Murdica.

Mr. Campbell took the floor back and stated he hated to punish the competitors. Mr. Sosenko
also told the board again that Capstone would be taking over and running the matches at the
Phoenix range. Mr. Conry asked for the floor and said he agreed, he did not want to hurt the
competitors. Mrs. Campbell reminded them that the club expired on 11/30/2024 and if the club
was not a member club should any world records be set would they be valid since the club was
expired. Mr. Campbell asked if we could allow the December 2024 match to run under their
2024 match agreement. Mr. Harris stated that we possibly could. Mr. Reagin stated that should
work since it was approved for the 2024 competition season.

Mr. Conry said he would agree and would withdraw his motion. After further discussion,
Mr. Harris made a motion to allow the December 14-15, 2024 match to run under the 2024
match agreement and would be a registered match but the Arizona Benchrest Shooters club
would not be renewed and their $40.00 returned. It was second by Pat Reagin. Mr. Campbell
called for a vote. Mr. Conry, Mr. Reagin, Mr. Harris, Mr. Zaccanti, and Mr. Moore all voted to
approve the motion. Mr. Sosenko abstained. Mr. Creach had left the meeting. Motion passed.

Mr. Campbell stated that he had no further business. Mr. Harris made a motion to adjourn.
Mr. Reagin second the motion. Mr. Conry, Mr. Reagin, Mr. Harris, Mr. Zaccanti, Mr. Moore
and Mr. Sosenko all voted to approve the motion. Mr. Creach had left the meeting. Motion
passed unanimously.

Meeting adjourned at 7:42 pm.
Respectfully submitted,
/s/ Pam Campbell

Pam Campbell
Secretary




